

**IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA**

**UNITED STATES OF AMERICA** : **CRIMINAL NO.** \_\_\_\_\_  
**v.** : **DATE FILED:** \_\_\_\_\_  
**DAVID MURRAY** : **VIOLATION:**  
**TERRELL LANG** : **18 U.S.C. § 1951(a) (robbery which interferes**  
: **with interstate commerce – 2 counts)**  
: **18 U.S.C. § 2 (aiding and abetting)**

**INDICTMENT**

**COUNT ONE**

**THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:**

At all times relevant to this indictment:

1. CVS Pharmacy, 2622 Jenkintown Avenue, Glenside, Pennsylvania, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce, by providing customers with goods and services produced, purchased, and transported from other states to Pennsylvania.

2. On or about June 28, 2015, in Jenkintown, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, defendants

**DAVID MURRAY  
and TERRELL LANG**

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in commerce, and attempted to do so by robbery, in that defendants DAVID MURRAY and TERRELL LANG unlawfully took and obtained, and aided and abetted the unlawful taking and obtaining of \$7100 United States currency, belonging to CVS Pharmacy, 2622 Jenkintown

Avenue, Glenside, Pennsylvania, from an employee of that business, against her will, by means of actual or threatened force, violence, and fear of injury, immediate and future to her person and property, that is, by brandishing a prop gun, forcing the employee and her coworkers into the store office, forcing the employee to empty the money from the store safe into her purse, stealing the employee's purse and personal phone, ordering the employee to rip out the store phones, and by threatening the employee of CVS Pharmacy.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951(a) and 2.

**COUNT TWO**

**THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:**

At all times relevant to this indictment:

1. Walgreen's Pharmacy, 1 Yorktown Plaza, Elkins Park, Pennsylvania was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce, by providing customers with goods and services produced, purchased, and transported from other states to Pennsylvania.

2. On or about September 15, 2015, in Elkins Park, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, defendant

**DAVID MURRAY**

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in commerce, and attempted to do so by robbery, in that defendant DAVID MURRAY unlawfully took and obtained, and aided and abetted the unlawful taking and obtaining of, personal property, that is, United States currency valued at approximately \$4,003 belonging to Walgreens Pharmacy, 1 Yorktown Plaza, in Elkins Park, Pennsylvania, from an employee of that business, against her will, by means of actual or threatened force, violence, and fear of injury, immediate and future to her person and property, that is, by brandishing a prop gun, forcing the employee and her coworkers to the store office, ordering the employee to empty the contents of the store's safe into a bag, forcing the employee to remove the surveillance recording system,

stealing the store's surveillance recording system, and by threatening the employee of Walgreen's Pharmacy.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951(a) and 2.

**A TRUE BILL:**

---

**GRAND JURY FOREPERSON**

---

**ZANE DAVID MEMEGER**  
**United States Attorney**